
  
 

Jeff Hughes 
Head of Democratic and Legal 

Support Services 
 

 
This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING : STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE 

VENUE : MEETING ROOM B - CHARRINGTONS HOUSE, 
BISHOP'S STORTFORD 

DATE : THURSDAY 6 MARCH 2014 

TIME : 3.00 PM 
 

PLEASE NOTE TIME AND VENUE 

 
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
  
Councillors K Crofton, S Rutland-Barsby and M Wood 
 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: JEFF HUGHES 

 

Public Document Pack



 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
 
 
1. A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, 

sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the 
Authority, with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to 
be considered or being considered at a meeting: 

 

 must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; 

 

 must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the 
meeting; 

 

 must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or 
not, subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act 
2011; 

 

 if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a 
pending notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest within 28 days; 

 

 must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 
 
2. A DPI is an interest of a Member or their partner (which means 

spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were 
civil partners) within the descriptions as defined in the Localism Act 
2011. 

 
 
3. The Authority may grant a Member dispensation, but only in limited 

circumstances, to enable him/her to participate and vote on a matter 
in which they have a DPI. 

 



 

 
4. It is a criminal offence to: 
 

 fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it 
is not on the register; 

 fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, within 28 days, of a DPI that 
is not on the register that a Member disclosed to a meeting; 

 participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a 
Member has a DPI; 

 knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or 
misleading in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in 
disclosing such interest to a meeting. 

 
(Note: The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a 

fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and 
disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years.)  

 



 

 
AGENDA 
 

1. Appointment of Chairman  
 

 To appoint a Chairman for this meeting.  
 

2. Apologies  
 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 

3. Chairman's Announcements  
 

 To receive any Chairman’s announcements.  
 

4. Declarations of Interest  
 

5. Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2013.   
 

6. Complaint in respect Hunsdon Parish Councillor D Gibbs - Investigation 
report (Pages 9 - 66) 

 

7. Urgent Business  
 

 To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration and is not likely to 
involve the disclosure of exempt information.  
 

 



SS  SS 
 
 

 
 

  MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE HELD IN 
THE ROOM 28, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD 
ON WEDNESDAY 26 JUNE 2013, AT 3.00 
PM 

   
 PRESENT: Councillors M Carver, K Crofton and M Wood    
   
 ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
  
  Councillor S Rutland-Barsby 
   
 OFFICER IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
  Jeff Hughes - Head of 

Democratic and 
Legal Support 
Services 

 
 ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
  Katherine Dumbovic - Independent Person 
 
1   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

 
 

 RESOLVED – that Councillor M Wood be appointed 
Chairman for this meeting of the Standards Sub-
Committee. 

 

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Councillor M Carver advised that he would withdraw from the 
meeting prior to consideration of the item detailed in Minute 6 
below.  The Sub-Committee noted the reasons now outlined 
by Councillor Carver for his intended withdrawal.  Councillor 
Rutland Barbsy would replace him on the Sub-Committee to 
consider this item. 
 

 

3   MINUTES  
 

 

 RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the meeting of the  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



SS  SS 
 
 

 
 

Standards Sub-Committee held on 23 January 2013 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman.  

 
4   COMPLAINT IN RESPECT OF DISTRICT COUNCILLOR  

M NEWMAN                                                                          
 

 

 The Monitoring Officer submitted a report on a complaint 
alleging that District Councillor M Newman had breached East 
Herts Council’s Councillors Code of Conduct. 
 
The complaint was the subject of an investigation by an 
independent Investigating Officer appointed by the Monitoring 
Officer. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the report of the Investigating 
Officer’s findings on the complaint in accordance with its 
approved procedure. 
 
The Standards Sub-Committee, in consultation with the 
Independent Person, determined that, in relation to all the 
circumstances of the case, there was no evidence of any 
failure by Councillor Newman to comply with the Code of 
Conduct and therefore there was no case to answer. 
 
 RESOLVED – that in relation to all the circumstances 

of the case, there was no evidence of any failure by 
Councillor Newman to comply with the Code of 
Conduct and therefore there was no case to answer. 

 

 

5   COMPLAINT IN RESPECT OF DISTRICT COUNCILLOR  
B WRANGLES                                                                      
 

 

 The Monitoring Officer submitted a report on a complaint 
alleging that District Councillor B Wrangles had breached the 
Council’s Councillors Code of Conduct. 
 
The Head of Democratic and Legal Support Services 
highlighted the Council’s assessment criteria for such 
complaints.  He invited the Sub-Committee to use the criteria 
to reach one of the following decisions on the complaint: 

 

Page 6



SS  SS 
 
 

 
 

 
(A) to refer it to the Council’s Monitoring Officer for 

investigation, or 
 
(B) to take no action. 
 
Based on the information provided by the complainant and the 
assessment criteria, the Sub-Committee agreed to take no 
action. 
 
 RESOLVED – that no action be taken on the complaint 

now submitted alleging that Councillor Wrangles had 
breached the Authority’s Code of Conduct.  

 
6   COMPLAINT IN RESPECT OF HUNSDON PARISH 

COUNCILLOR D GIBBS                                              
 

 

 The Monitoring Officer submitted a report on a complaint 
alleging that Hunsdon Parish Councillor D Gibbs had 
breached that Authority’s Councillors Code of Conduct. 
 
The Head of Democratic and Legal Support Services 
highlighted the Council’s assessment criteria for such 
complaints.  He invited the Sub-Committee to use the criteria 
to reach one of the following decisions on the complaint: 
 
(A) to refer it to the Council’s Monitoring Officer for 

investigation, or 
 
(B) to take no action. 
 
The Sub-Committee agreed to refer the complaint to the 
Monitoring Officer for investigation. 
 
 RESOLVED – that the complaint now submitted 

alleging that Hunsdon Parish Councillor D Gibbs had 
breached that Authority’s Code of Conduct be referred 
to the Monitoring Officer for investigation.  

 

 

 (Note:  Councillor Carver left the room prior to consideration of 
this item.) 

 

Page 7



SS  SS 
 
 

 
 

 
The meeting closed at 3.25 pm 
 

 
Chairman ............................................................ 
 
Date  ............................................................ 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
  

EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE – 6 MARCH 2014 
 
REPORT BY THE DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 COMPLAINT IN RESPECT OF HUNSDON PARISH  
COUNCILLOR D GIBBS – INVESTIGATION REPORT 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  NONE 
 

       
 
Purpose/Summary of Report 
 

 To consider a complaint in respect of Parish Councillor D Gibbs, a 
Member of Hunsdon Parish Council. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 Council has received a complaint alleging that a member of 

Hunsdon Parish Council has breached that Authority’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 

2.0 The Report 
 

2.1 The Council has agreed a procedure for considering complaints. 
 

2.2 The Sub-Committee will consider the report and decide what 
action to take. 
 

3.0 The Complaint 
 

3.1 A Complaint was made that Hunsdon ParishCouncillor D Gibbs 
breached his Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

3.2      Details of the complaint are set out in the Investigating Officer’s 
report. 
 

4.0 The Investigating Officer’s Report 
 

4.1 An investigating officer was appointed to carry out an 
investigation.  Following the investigation, the Investigating Officer 
concluded that, in all the circumstances of this case, there is no 
evidence of a failure to comply with the Members’ Code of 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
  

Conduct.  A copy of the Investigating Officer’s report is attached 
at Essential Reference Paper B. 

 
5.0 Procedure 

 
5.1 A copy of the Council’s complaints procedure is contained in 

Essential Reference Paper C.   
 

6.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
6.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’.   

 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Contact Officer: Simon Drinkwater- Director of Neighbourhood 

Services - 01992 531405  
   simon.drinkwater@eastherts.gov.uk 
 
Report Author: Jeff Hughes – Deputy Monitoring Officer –  

ext. 2170. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
  

 

 
ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 

 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate): 

People 
This priority focuses on enhancing the quality of life, 
health and wellbeing of individuals, families and 
communities, particularly those who are vulnerable. 

 Enhance our local community engagement 
by working together with our partners such as 
Parish and Town Councils, for the benefit of 
our communities. 

 

 Maintain our core services to a good 
standard and ensure high satisfaction with 
the council as measured through the biennial 
Residents Survey.  

 

Consultation: None 

Legal: The procedures are in accordance with the regulations. 

Financial: None 

Human 
Resource: 

None 

Risk 
Management: 

The case should be determined in accordance with the 
regulations having regard to the relevant guidance. 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER B 
 
  
 

REPORT OF AN INVESTIGATION UNDER s60 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
INTO ALLEGATIONS CONCERNING COUNCILLOR DAVID GIBBS A COUNCILLOR OF 

HUNSDON PARISH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Abbreviations 
 
2. Complaint 
 
3. Findings 
 
4. Councillor Gibbs’ official details  
 
5. Summary of allegations  
 
6. Investigating Officer’s summary of facts 
 
7. Reasoning as to whether there have been failures to comply with the Code of 

Conduct 
 
8. Conclusion 
 
9. Additional Findings 
 
10. Appendix 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
 
 
 
 
1.0 Abbreviations 
 
„CMN‟ means Councillor Michael Newman 
 
„CDG‟ means Councillor David Gibbs 
 
„the application‟ means planning application 3/12/1440/FP in relation to Hunsdon Parish Church 
approved by Development Control Committee on 7th November 2012 
 
„DCC‟ means Development Control Committee 
 
„EHDC‟ means East Herts District Council 
 
„HPC‟ means Hunsdon Parish Council 
 
„PCCC‟ means Hunsdon Parochial Church Council 
 
„the code‟ means Hunsdon Parish Council Code of Conduct – see document A 
 
„the meeting‟ means the meeting of DCC on 7th November 2012 dealing with the application  
 
 
 
 
2.0 Complaint 
 

The complaint (document B) by CMN, is regarding CDG‟s report as Chairman of 
Hunsdon Parish Council to the 2012/2013 Hunsdon Annual Parish Meeting on 25th 
March 2013 (see document B) in which it is alleged that CDG breached the HPC Code 
of  
Conduct.   
 

 
3.0 Finding 
 
 My finding is that there is insufficient evidence that CDG failed to comply with this Code. 
 
 
4.0     Councillor David Gibbs’  official details 
 
2.1     CDG was first elected to HPC in May 2002 and has been re-elected since then.  CMN 

proposed him as chairman of HPC in May 2004 and he has been elected into this 
position by members annually to date.  He holds no other role within the Council. 

 
2.2 There is no record of CDG having attended Code of Practice training.  However he was 

furnished with a Good Councillors Guide booklet in 2003 and a Parish Counsellors 
Guide in 2009.   
 

5.0 Summary of allegations  
 
 

Page 14



5.1 The breach is alleged to have occurred in CDG‟s report as Chairman of Hunsdon Parish 
Council which he read out to its Annual Meeting on 25th March 2013. This report has 
subsequently been published with the minutes of the meeting and posted on the village 
website and is therefore public knowledge. The Report relates to CMN‟s conduct leading 
up to and at EHDC‟s DCC meeting on 7th November 2012 when a planning application 
regarding the current St Francis Chapel in Hunsdon was considered.  CMN is both a 
Member of DCC and the Local Member for that application site. 

 
5.2 The allegation is that CDG made a number of accusations that CMN acted improperly in 

this matter and did not abide by HPC Code of Conduct :- 
 
 5.2.1   Following notification by the then Chairman of DCC on 18th February 2013 to 

the Clerk to HPC that she „understood there was a formal investigation taking place in 
connection with CMN‟s involvement with this application…and it would be most 
inappropriate for her to enter into correspondence on any of the points raised in the 
clerk‟s letter in connection with him‟ CDG should have refrained from any comment on 
the matter as this was sub judice on 25th March 2013.   

 
 5.2.2    CDG stated that CMN had demonstrated no support for the feelings of his 

electorate and failed to represent the community which had plainly made its views 
known through two public meetings.  Furthermore he had demonstrated a dismissive 
attitude to EHDC Code of Conduct and it was his actions and words with a negligible 
consultation which culminated in a granted decision and tore the village apart with his 
speech being full of bias and partisan content. 

 
 5.2.3  CDG also stated that because CMN‟s wife is a Church Warden and a member of 

PCCC who was the applicant it was perceived that a personal interest could affect his 
judgment on Church matters and was consequently asked to withdraw from the planning 
meeting but refused. 

 
 
5.3 This report investigates whether by his conduct CDG has breached the Code and 

considers whether he failed to comply with the relevant sections thereof. 
 
 
5.4 It is alleged that CDG has breached the HPC Code of Conduct for Councillors 
 
  Part 1 Section 3 (1) – You must treat others with respect 

Part 1 Section 5   - You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could                                  
reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or Hunsdon Parish 
Council into disrepute. 

 
5.5 A copy of the Code of Conduct is attached as Document A 
 
 
6.0 Summary of Facts 
 
6.1 CDG is a member of HPC and therefore subject to its Code of Conduct for Councillors 
 
6.2 CMN attended the meeting of DCC on 7th November 2012 and spoke on the application 

in his role as DCC Member 
 
6.3 CMN was subsequently investigated by the Standards Committee for breaches of EHDC 

code of practice 
 
6.4 The allegations were found to be not proven and there was no breach of the EHDC 

Code of Practice   

Page 15



 
6.5 CDG did read his report to members of HPC Annual Meeting on 25th March 2013 acting 

in an official capacity of HPC 
 
6.6 The decision on the investigation report was not made until 26th June 2013 
 
6.7 CMN did not have a pecuniary interest in the application to declare which is the only 

interest which has to be registered and disclosed and he was therefore entitled to speak 
and vote at DCC on the application 

 
6.8 There was no evidence that the majority of CMN's constituents were against this 

application only that the HPC was.   
 
6.9 CMN was asked by the Hunsdon Parish Clerk to present HPCs objections to the DCC as 

Ward Councillor.  CMN responded that he understood David Kitching would be at the 
meeting and would presumably put these points.  He himself would probably speak as 
Ward Councillor but what he said would depend on everything he personally had read 
and heard prior to and at the meeting.  I can find no evidence of him agreeing to present 
the HPCs views.  Indeed in an email dated 15th October 2012 he states that he may 
comment at the DCC as a member of that Committee rather than on behalf of the 
community and with reference to the whole body of material available.  I find that this is 
what he did, set out the background to the application and identify some issues.  He did 
not describe the advantages that the community might gain or the penalties it might 
suffer from building the new chapel or invite members to vote one way or another 

 
 
7.0  Reasoning as to whether there have been failures to comply with the Code of 

Conduct 
 
7.1 I must now consider whether the conduct of CDG constitutes a breach of the HPC Code 

of Conduct.  It is the responsibility of a Councillor to comply with the provisions of the 
Code whenever s/he conducts the business of the Authority in an official capacity.  A 
very clear line has to be drawn between the Code of Conduct and the freedom to 
disagree with the views and opinions of others.   

 
7.2 I have taken into account the decision in R(Calver) v Public Services Ombudsman for 

Wales 2012 which related to council members and politicians who use social media as a 
way of commenting on other members.  Although it was found that the comments 
directed towards other councillors were „sarcastic and mocking‟ they were not found to 
amount to „political expression‟.  Judge Beatson J stated that it was necessary to bear in 
mind „the traditions of robust debate‟ which may include „some degree of lampooning of 
those who place themselves in public office‟ which would necessarily require politicians 
to have „thicker skins than others‟.  The Court found that the Adjudication Panel‟s 
decision that comments made on a public web site had broken the council‟s code of 
practice had been a disproportionate interference with the Councillor‟s rights under 
Article 10 of the European Community Human Rights.  

 
7.3 Part   1 Section 3 (1) – You must treat others with respect 
 
 7.3.1 CDG made his report on 25th March 2013 and stated that some villagers had 

asked him to explain how the application came to be granted when it was recommended 
by the planning officer for refusal, and objected to by a large majority of parishioners.  
He then went on to place much of the fault at the feet of CMN and gave an account of 
his interpretation of „what went on‟. 

 
 7.3.2 Quite clearly CDG believed what he said to be true, and still does. 
 

Page 16



 7.3.3 There is no conclusive evidence that CDG knew of the contents of the letter of 
15th February 2013 to the Parish Clerk but I am prepared to accept that this is possible. 

 
 7.3.4 CMN was not cleared of the complaints against him until 26th June 2013 and 

prior to that the nature of the investigation would not have been known to the public, 
including CDG.   

 
 7.3.5 Although I consider CDG was careless with his choice of words in his report, I do 

not see them as being anything more than him stating what he believed to be true and 
comes within the remit of the Calver case which clearly anticipates „some degree of 
lampooning‟.  Whilst CMN does not agree with all that was said, and some of his 
remarks were inaccurate, this is what politics are all about and a fine line has to be 
drawn between opinion and  lack of respect.  People are entitled to their own 
interpretation of events. 

 
 7.3.6 Both parties are respected Councillors. 
 
 7.3.6 On the balance of probabilities I find the scales just tip in favour of CDG and do 

not therefore find that he has been disrespectful to CMN in his report. 
 
7.4 Part 1 Section 5   - You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could                                  

reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or HPC into disrepute. 
 
 7.4.1 In view of my findings in 7.3 above I see no additional evidence to suggest that 

CMG has brought his office or HPC into disrepute.  
 
 
8.0   Conclusion 
 
I do not find the complaint against Councillor David Gibbs founded in either section.   
 
 
9.0 Final Consideration  
 
9.1 CDG says that he did not know of the communication on 18th February 2013 advising 
that CMN was under investigation or the nature of any allegation.  I do not therefore see how he 
could know that what he reported could be sub judice. 
 
9.2 Much of what CDG said about CMN‟s conduct was subsequently found to be factually 
and demonstrably untrue, but at the time he made his report the decision on the investigation 
had not been made and he believed his comments to be true. Failure to treat others with 
respect will occur when unfair, unreasonable or demeaning behaviour is directed by one person 
against another. 
 
9.3 The Calver case I refer to involved Councillors and the social media, but the points from 
it that I have principally taken into account is the comment of Judge Beaston that Councillors 
need to accept that they may not always like what is said about them. 
 
9.4 Whilst CDG may well have been better advised not to comment in the way that he did, 
he has not in my view been disrespectful in terms of the Code of Practice or brought his role as 
Councillor or HPC into disrepute on this occasion. 
 
9.5      I now refer to an appeal decision dated 26th February 2008 in which The Appellant 
appealed against the Standards Committee‟s finding that he had failed to follow paragraphs 
2(b), 2(c) and 4 of the Code of Conduct through the comments he made about the Town Clerk 
on 20 July 2006 at a meeting of the Charity Trustees.  In the Appeals Tribunal‟s view, it was 
“important that members should be able to express in robust terms concerns that they have 

Page 17



about any aspect of the running of the council and that this can include expressing 
disagreement with officers and can include criticism of the way in which an officer handles 
particular matters.”  It is my view that this can also refer to Councillors as well as officers.  They 

went on to say “Whilst this was undoubtedly uncomfortable for the Town Clerk and it could be 
argued that it might have been better expressed in a more appropriate forum, the Appeals 
Tribunal does not believe that a reasonable objective observer of the proceedings would think 
that the comments would bring the office of councillor or the authority into disrepute”.   

 
9.6 My conclusion remains that CDG has not breached HPC Code of Practice after my 
investigation into this complaint against him.. I recommend that no further action be taken in this 
matter. 
 

  
 
 
           
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     APPENDIX   A 
 
 
 

Schedule of evidence taken into account 
 
 
 

          Document Number                Description                                                      
 

 
         A  Code of Conduct for HPC 

 
      B               Complaint  
 

             C   Minutes of DCC on 7th November 2012 
  dealing with the application 
           
   D  Report to Standards Sub Committee 

26th June 2013 
 

    
 

             
 

  

 

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Complaints Procedure 

1.0 Context 

1.1 These “Arrangements” set out how you may make a complaint that an 
elected or co-opted Member of this authority (or of a Town or Parish 
council within its area) has failed to comply with the Councillors’ Code of 
Conduct, and sets out how the authority will deal with allegations of a 
failure to comply with the Councillors’ Code of Conduct. 

1.2 Under Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must 
have in place “arrangements” under which allegations that a Member or 
co-opted Member of the authority (or of a Town or Parish council within 
the authority’s area), or of a Committee or Sub-Committee of the authority, 
has failed to comply with Code of Conduct can be investigated and 
decisions made on such allegations. 

1.3 Such arrangements must provide for the authority to appoint at least 1 
Independent Person, whose views must be sought by the authority before 
it takes a decision on an allegation which it has decided shall be 
investigated, and whose views can be sought by the authority at any other 
stage, or by a Member (or a Member or co-opted Member of a Town or 
Parish council) against whom an allegation has been made. 

2.0 The Code of Conduct 

2.1 The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for Councillors, which is 
available for inspection on the authority’s website and on request from 
Reception at the Council Offices. 

2.2 Each Town and Parish Council is also required to adopt a Code of 
Conduct.  If you wish to inspect a Town or Parish Council’s Code of 
Conduct, you should inspect any website operated by the Town or Parish 
Council and request the Town or Parish Clerk to allow you to inspect the 
Town or Parish Council’s Code of Conduct. 

3.0 Making a complaint 

3.1 If you wish to make a complaint, please write or email to: 

 The Deputy Monitoring Officer - Jeff Hughes 
 East Herts Council 
 Council Offices 
 Wallfields 

Page 53



 Pegs Lane 
 Hertford 
 SG13 8EQ  

 Tel: 01279 655261 

3.2 The Monitoring Officer is a senior officer of the authority who has statutory 
responsibility for maintaining the register of Members’ interests and who is 
responsible for administering the system in respect of complaints of 
Member misconduct. 

3.3 In order to ensure that the Council has all the information which we need 
to be able to process your complaint, please complete and send us the 
complaint form, which can be downloaded from the authority’s website, 
next to the Code of Conduct, and is available on request from the 
Reception at the Council Offices. 

3.4 Please provide the Council with your name and a contact address or email 
address, so that we can acknowledge receipt of your complaint and keep 
you informed of its progress.  If you want to keep your name and address 
confidential, please indicate this in the space provided on the complaint 
form.  The Monitoring Officer will consider your request and if granted we 
will not disclosure your name and address to the Member against whom 
you make the complaint, without your prior consent.   

3.5 The authority does not normally investigate anonymous complaints, 
unless there is a clear public interest in doing so. 

3.6 The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of your complaint within 5 
working days of receiving it, and will keep you informed of the progress of 
your complaint. 

3.7 The Complaints Procedure Flowchart is annexed at Appendix 1 for your 
assistance. The Council will endeavour to deal with a complaint within 3 
months. 

4.0 Will your complaint be investigated? 

4.1 The Monitoring Officer will review every complaint received and, may 
 consult with the Independent Person before referring it to the Standards 
 Sub-Committee 

4.2 This decision will normally be taken within 28 working days of receipt of 
your complaint.  Your complaint will be considered in accordance with the 

Page 54



Assessment Criteria annexed at Appendix 2. The Standards Sub-
Committee will make a recommendation as to whether the complaint 
should be investigated.  Where the Sub-Committee requires additional 
information in order to come to a decision, the Monitoring Officer may 
come back to you for such information, and may request information from 
the Member against whom your complaint is directed.  Where your 
complaint relates to a Town or Parish Councillor, the Monitoring Officer 
may also inform the Parish Council of your complaint and seek the views 
of the Town or Parish Council before submitting it to the Sub-Committee. 

4.3 In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the 
complaint informally, without the need for a formal investigation.  Such 
informal resolution may involve the Member accepting that his/her conduct 
was unacceptable and offering an apology, or other remedial action by the 
authority.  Where the Member or the authority make a reasonable offer of 
informal resolution, but you are not willing to accept the offer, the Sub-
Commitee will take account of this in deciding whether the complaint 
merits further investigation. 

4.4 If your complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation 
by any person, the Monitoring Officer has the power to call in the Police or 
other regulatory agencies. 

5.0 How is the investigation conducted? 

5.1 The Council has adopted a procedure for the investigation of misconduct 
complaints, which is attached as Appendix 3 to these arrangements. 

5.2 If the Council decides that a complaint merits further investigation, the 
Council may appoint an Investigating Officer, who may be another senior 
officer of the authority, an officer of another authority or an external 
investigator.  The Investigating Officer or Monitoring Officer will decide 
whether he/she needs to meet or speak to you to understand the nature of 
your complaint and so that you can explain your understanding of events 
and suggest what documents needs to seen, and who needs to be 
interviewed. 

5.3 The Investigating Officer or Monitoring Officer will normally write to the 
Member against whom you have complained and provide him/her with a 
copy of your complaint, and ask the Member to provide his/her 
explanation of events, and to identify what documents he needs to see 
and who he needs to interview.  In exceptional cases, where it is 
appropriate to keep your identity confidential or disclosure of details of the 

Page 55



complaint to the Member might prejudice the investigation, the Monitoring 
Officer can delete your name and from the papers given to the Member, or 
delay notifying the Member until the investigation has progressed 
sufficiently. 

5.4 At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer or Monitoring 
Officer will produce a draft report (“the Investigation Report”) and will send 
copies of that draft report, in confidence, to you and to the Member 
concerned, to give you both an opportunity to identify any matter in that 
draft report which you disagree with or which you consider requires more 
consideration. 

5.5 Having received and taken account of any comments which you may 
make on the draft Investigation Report.  Where an Investigating Officer 
has been appointed the Investigating Officer will send his/her final report 
to the Monitoring Officer. 

6.0 What happens if the Investigating Officer or Monitoring Officer 
concludes that there is no evidence of a failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct? 

6.1 If an Investigating Officer has been appointed the Monitoring Officer will 
review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if he is satisfied that the 
Investigating Officer’s report is sufficient, the Monitoring Officer will write to 
you and to the Member concerned and to the Town or Parish Council, 
where your complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, notifying you that he 
is satisfied that no further action is required, and give you both a copy of 
the Investigation Final Report. The Monitoring Officer will then report to 
the Standards Sub-Committee which will make a decision based on the 
report. 

6.2 If an Investigating Officer has been appointed and if the Monitoring Officer 
is not satisfied that the investigation has been conducted properly, he may 
ask the Investigating Officer to reconsider his/her report. 

7.0 What happens if the Investigating Officer or Monitoring Officer 
concludes that there is evidence of a failure to comply with the Code 
of Conduct? 

7.1 If an Investigating Officer has been appointed the Monitoring Officer will 
review the Investigating Officer’s report and will then either send the 
matter for a hearing before the Standards Sub-Committee and in 
consultation with the Independent Person seek an informal resolution. 

Page 56



7.1.1 Informal Resolution 

The Monitoring Officer may consider that the matter can reasonably 
be resolved without the need for a hearing.  In such a case, he/she 
will consult with the Independent Person and with you as 
complainant and seek to agree what you may consider to be a fair 
resolution which also helps to ensure higher standards of conduct 
for the future.  Such resolution may include the Member accepting 
that his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, 
and/or other remedial action by the authority.  If the Member 
complies with the suggested resolution, the Monitoring Officer will 
report the matter to the Standards Committee and the Town or 
Parish Council for information, but will take no further action.    

7.1.2 Hearing 

If the Monitoring Officer considers that informal resolution is not 
appropriate, or the Councillor concerned is not prepared to 
undertake any proposed remedial action, such as giving an 
apology, then the Monitoring Officer will report the Investigation 
Report to the Sub-Committee which may conduct a hearing before 
deciding whether the Member has failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct and, if so, whether to take any action in respect of the 
member. 

The Council has agreed a procedure for hearing complaints, which 
is attached as Appendix 4 to these arrangements. 

At the hearing, the Investigating Officer or the Monitoring Officer will 
present his/her report, call such witnesses as he/she considers 
necessary and make representations to substantiate his/her 
conclusion that the Member has failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct.  For this purpose, the Investigating Officer or Monitoring 
Officer may ask you as the complainant to attend and give 
evidence to the Sub-Committee.  The Member will then have an 
opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call witnesses and to make 
representations to the Sub-Committee as to why he/she considers 
that he/she did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct. 

The Sub-Committee, with the benefit of any advice from the 
Independent Person, may conclude that the Member did not fail to 
comply with the Code of Conduct, and dismiss the complaint.  If the 
Sub-Committee concludes that the Member did fail to comply with 

Page 57



the Code of Conduct, the Chairman will inform the Member of this 
finding and the Sub-Committee will then consider what action, if 
any, the Sub-Committee should recommend as a result of the 
Member’s failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.  In doing this, 
the Sub-Committee will give the Member an opportunity to make 
representations to the Sub-Committee and will consult the 
Independent Person, but will then decide what action, if any, to take 
in respect of the matter. 

8.0 What action can the Standards Sub-Committee take where a Member 
has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct? 

8.1 The Sub-Committee may decide to take action in respect of individual 
Members as may be necessary to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct.   Accordingly the Sub-Committee may consider:- 

8.2 i.  A formal letter to the Councillor found to have breached the code; 
ii.  Formal censure by motion; 
iii.  Removal by the authority of the Member from Committee(s) subject 
 to statutory and constitutional requirements; 
iv.  Press release or other appropriate publicity; 

8.3 The Sub-Committee has no power to suspend or disqualify the Member or 
to withdraw Members’ or special responsibility allowances. 

9.0 What happens at the end of the hearing? 

9.1 At the end of the hearing, the Chairman will state the decision of the 
Standards Sub-Committee as to whether the Member failed to comply with 
the Code of Conduct and as to any actions which the Sub-Committee 
resolves to take. 

9.2 The Monitoring Officer will prepare a formal decision notice in consultation 
with the Chairman of the Sub Committee, and send a copy to you, to the 
Member and to the Town or Parish Council, making that decision notice 
available for public inspection. 

10.0 Who are the Standards Sub-Committee? 

10.1 It is a Sub-Committee comprising Independent Members. 

10.2  If the Councillor complained about is a member of a Town or Parish 
Council a Town or Parish Councillor who is a member of the Standards 
Committee will also be invited to attend the Sub-Committee. 

Page 58



10.3 The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Sub-
Committee and their views are sought and taken into consideration before 
the Sub-Committee takes any decision on whether the Member’s conduct 
constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any 
action to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the Code of 
Conduct. 

11.0 Who is the Independent Person? 

11.1 The Independent Person is a person who has applied for the post 
following advertisement of a vacancy for the post, and is appointed by a 
positive vote from a majority of all the Members of Council. 

11.2 A person cannot be “independent” if he/she: 

11.2.1 Is, or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted 
member or officer of the authority; 

11.2.2 (Is or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted 
member or officer of a parish council within the authority’s area), or 

11.2.3 Is a relative or close friend, of a person within paragraph 11.2.1 or 
11.2.2 above.  For this purpose, a “relative” means: 

11.2.3.1 Spouse or civil partner; 

11.2.3.2 Living with the other person as husband and wife or 
as if they were civil partners; 

11.2.3.3 Grandparent of the other person; 

11.2.3.4 A lineal descendent of a grandparent of the other  
  person; 

11.2.3.5 A parent, sibling or child of a person within 
paragraphs 11.2.3.1 or 11.2.3.2; or 

11.2.3.6 A spouse or civil partner of a person within 
paragraphs 11.2.3.3, 11.2.3.4 or 11.2.3.5; or 

11.2.3.7 Living with a person within paragraphs 11.2.3.3, 
11.2.3.4 or 11.2.3.5 as husband and wife or as if they 
were civil partners. 

12.0 Revision of these arrangements 

Page 59



The Council may by resolution agree to amend these arrangements, and 
has delegated to the Chairman of the Sub-Committee the right to depart 
from these arrangements where he/she considers that it is expedient to do 
so in order to secure the effective and fair consideration of any matter. 

13.0 Appeals 

13.1 There is no right of appeal for you as complainant or for the Member 
against a decision of the Monitoring Officer or of the Sub-Committee. 

13.2 If you feel that the authority has failed to deal with your complaint properly, 
you can make a complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman. 

 

Page 60



Complaint received by 
Monitoring Officer

Preliminary review by Monitoring Officer who may seek additional 
information and / or consult with the Independent Person.  Issues a 

preliminary report to Standards
Sub Committee with recommendation 

Monitoring Officer:
Acknowledges complaint within 5 working 
days

In consultation with the 
Independent Person:
1. No further action
2. Formal Decision/
action

Full Report referred to 
Standards Sub-

Committee or Informal 
Resolution

No further action Informal Resolution
(Mediation, apology etc)

Full Investigation Report to include:
-Agreed facts;
-Facts not agreed and corresponding 
conflicting evidence
-Conclusion whether a breach of the code of 
not.

Instructs Monitoring 
Officer to investigate or 
appoints investigating 

officer. 
Full report produced

Standards Committee arbitrates on facts and 
concluded whether a breach of the Code of 
Conduct has occurred. Any decision is made 
in consultation with the independent Person.

Complaints Procedure Flowchart

APPENDIX 1

Preliminary tests:
Potential breach of the code?
What to do with it?
Assessment of public interest?
Decision within 28 working days of receipt
Or seek additional information as required prior to making a decision.
Independent Persons is consulted

Complaints which would not normally be referred for investigation:
1.    The complaint is not considered sufficiently serious to warrant investigation; or
2.    The complaint appears to be simply motivated by malice or is “tit-for-tat” or
3 The complaint appears to be politically motivated; or
4.     It appears that there can be no breach of the Code of Conduct; for example, that it relates to the Councillor’s  private  life or is about 
        dissatisfaction with a Council decision; or
5 It is about someone who is no longer a Councillor
6 There is insufficient information available for referral; or
7 The complaint has not been received within 3 months of the alleged misconduct unless there are exceptional circumstances e.g. allegation 
        of bullying, harassment etc.
8.     The matter occurred so long ago that it would be difficult for a fair investigation to be carried out; or
9.     The same, or similar, complaint has already been investigated and there is nothing further to be gained by seeking  the sanctions available  
        to the Council; or
10 It is an anonymous complaint, unless it includes sufficient documentary evidence to show a significant breach of the Code of Conduct. 
11.   Where the Member complained of has apologised and/or admitted making an error and the matter would not warrant a more serious 
        sanction.

Standards Sub 
committee considers 

preliminary report and 
decides course of action

Page 61



APPENDIX 2 

STANDARDS COMPLAINTS ASSESSMENT CRITERIA 

 
Complaints which would not normally be referred for investigation  
 
1.  The complaint is not considered sufficiently serious to warrant 
 investigation; or 
 
2. The complaint appears to be simply motivated by malice or is “tit-for-tat”; 
 or 
 
3.  The complaint appears to be politically motivated; or 
 
4.   It appears that there can be no breach of the Code of Conduct; for 

 example, that it relates to the Councillor’s private life or is about 
 dissatisfaction with a Council decision; or 

 
5.  it is about someone who is no longer a Councillor 
 
5.  There is insufficient information available for a referral; or 
 
6.  The complaint has not been received within 3 months of the alleged 
 misconduct unless there are exceptional circumstances e.g. allegation of 
 bullying, harassment etc. 
 
7.  The matter occurred so long ago that it would be difficult for a fair 
 investigation to be carried out; or 
 
8.  The same, or similar, complaint has already been investigated and there is 
 nothing further to be gained by seeking the sanctions available to the 
 Council; or 
 
9.  It is an anonymous complaint, unless it includes sufficient documentary 
 evidence to show a significant breach of the Code of Conduct. 
 
10.  Where the Member complained of has apologised and/or admitted making 
 an error and the matter would not warrant a more serious sanction 
 
 
 

Page 62



You should maintain a written record to demonstrate what was considered at the start of each 
investigation and plan how you intend to carry out the investigation, the paragraphs of the code 
that may have been breached, the facts you need to determine to establish, the evidence you 
will need, how you plan to gather the evidence and how long it will take to conclude your 
investigation. Remember there is no provision in the Localism Act 2011 for co -operation with 
your investigation.

A written Investigation Report will need to be prepared for consideration by the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer.

On receipt of instructions to carry out an 
investigation from the MO ensure sufficient 

detail is received to commence an investigation
Acknowledge receipt

-Contact complaint and request any 
supporting or further documentary evidence 
relating to the complaint
-Contact subject Member with details of the 
complaint and seek explanation

Request any further documentary evidence

Draft report and submit to MO for 
consideration. Report to contain: 

-Agreed facts
Facts not agreed and corresponding 

conflicting evidence
Conclusion as to whether there is a breach 

of the code or not

MO either accepts or asks you to reconsider 
your report

Identify:
Whether further information from the 
complainant is required
What paragraphs of the code alleged to have 
breached
The facts which need to be determined to 
establish if the Member has breached the 
code
The evidence you need to determine the 
issues
How long you plan to gather the evidence
How long it is likely to take to undertake the 
investigation.

Identify witnesses and arrange interview (s)

Interview subject Member

APPENDIX 3

STANDARDS COMPLAINTS INVESTIGATION 
PROCEDURE

Page 63



Appendix 4 

Complaints Standards Sub-Committee Procedure 

Item 
No. 

Procedure 

1 Quorum 

1.1. Three Members must be present throughout the hearing to 
form a quorum. 

 
1.2. The Sub-Committee shall elect a Chairman for the meeting  

 

2 Opening 

2.1        The Chairman explains the procedure for the hearing and 
reminds all parties to turn off mobile phones. 

2.2 The Chairman asks all present to introduce themselves 
 
2.3 The Councillor will be asked whether they wish to briefly 

outline their position  
3 The Complaint 

3.1   The Investigating Officer shall be invited to present their report 
including any documentary evidence or other material (and to 
call witnesses as required by the Investigating Officer).  This 
report and documentary evidence must be based on the 
complaint made to the Council – no new points will be 
allowed. 

 
3.2 The Councillor against whom the complaint has been made 

(or their representative) may question the Investigating Officer 
upon the content of their report and any witnesses called by 
the Investigating Officer. (This is the Councillor’s opportunity 
to ask questions arising from the Investigator's report and not to 
make a statement) 

 

3.3 Members of the Sub-Committee may question the 
Investigating Officer upon the content of their report and/or 
any witnesses called by the Investigating Officer 

4 The Councillor’s case 

4.1 The Councillor against whom the complaint has been made (or 
their representative) may present their case (and call any 
witnesses as required by the Councillor or their representative) 

 

Page 64



4.2 The Investigating Officer may question the Councillor and/or 
any witnesses 

 
4.3 Members of the Sub-Committee may question the Member  

and/or any witnesses 
5 Summing Up 

5.1 The Investigating Officer may sum up the Complaint 
 
5.2 The Member (or their representative) may sum up their case.   

6 Decision 

6.1 Members of the Sub-Committee will deliberate in private to 
consider the complaint in consultation with the Independent 
Person prior to reaching a decision 

 
6.2 Upon the Sub-Committee’s return the Chairman will announce 

the Sub-Committee’s decision in the following terms:- 
 
6.2.1   The Sub-Committee decides that the Member has failed to 

follow the Code of Conduct or 

6.2.2 The Sub-Committee decides that the Member has not failed to 
follow the Code of Conduct 

 
6.2.3 The Sub-Committee will give reasons for their decision  
 
6.3 If the Sub-Committee decides that the Member has failed to 

follow the Code of Conduct the Panel will consider any 
representations from the Investigator and/or the Member as to: 

 
6.3.1 Whether any action should be taken and 
 
6.3.2 What form any action should take 
 
6.4 The Sub-Committee will then deliberate in private to consider 

what action if any should be taken in consultation with the 
Independent Person  

 
6.5 On the Sub-Committee’s return the Chairman will announce the 

Sub-Committee’s decision (in relation to a Parish Councillor 
            a recommendation to the Parish Council)  

 
           6.6 The Sub-Committee will consider whether it should make any 

           recommendations to the Council or in relation to a Parish 
           Councillor to the Parish Council with a view to promoting high 
           standards of conduct among Members. 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Complaint in respect Hunsdon Parish Councillor D Gibbs - Investigation report
	ERP A (Implications)
	ERP B - Complaint in respect of Hunsdon Parish Councillor D Gibbs - Investigation report
	ERP B - Appendices to Complaint in respect of Hunsdon Parish Councillor D Gibbs - Investigation report
	ERP C Complaints Procedure 2013




